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The Honorable Byron W. Brown
Mayor of Buffalo

201 City Hall

65 Niagara Square

Buffalo, NY 14202

Re:  In the Matter of the City of Buffalo
Docket Number RCRA-02-2013-7108

Dear Mayor Brown:

Enclosed is the Complaint, Compliance Order and Opportunity for Hearing in the above-
referenced proceeding. The Complaint alleges violations of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as
amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 ef seq.

You have the right to a formal hearing to contest any of the allegations in the Complaint and/or
to contest the penalty proposed in the Complaint. If you wish to contest the allegations and/or
the penalty proposed in the Complaint, you must file an Answer within thirty (30) days of your
receipt of the enclosed Complaint with the Regional Hearing Clerk of the Environmental
Protection Agency (“EPA”), Region 2, at the following address:

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2
290 Broadway, 16th floor

New York, New York 10007-1866

If you do not file an Answer within thirty (30) days of receipt of this Complaint and have not
obtained a formal extension for filing an Answer from the Regional Judicial Officer of Region 2,
a default order may be entered against you and the entire proposed penalty may be assessed.

Whether or not you request a formal hearing, you may request an informal conference with EPA
to discuss any issue relating to the alleged violations and the amount of the proposed penalty.

Internet Address (URL) e http:/fwww.epa.gov
Recycled/Recyclable o Printed with Vegetable Oil Based Inks on Recycled Paper (Minimum 50% Postconsumer content)




EPA encourages all parties against whom it files a Complaint to pursue the possibility of
settlement and to have an informal conference with EPA. However, a request for an informal
conference does not substitute for a written Answer, affect what you may choose to say in an
Answer, or extend the thirty (30) days by which you must file an Answer requesting a hearing.

You will find enclosed a copy of the “Consolidated Rules of Practice,” which govern this
proceeding. (A brief discussion of some of these rules appears in the later part of the Complaint.)
For your general information and use, I also enclose both an “Information Sheet for U.S. EPA
Small Business Resources” which may apply to you depending on the size of the proposed
penalty and the nature of your company.

EPA encourages the use of Supplemental Environmental Projects, where appropriate, as part of
any settlement. I am enclosing a brochure on “EPA’s Supplemental Environmental Projects
Policy.” Please note that these are only available as part of a negotiated settlement and are not
available if this case has to be resolved by a formal adjudication.

If you have any questions or wish to schedule an informal conference, please contact the attorney
whose name is listed in the Complaint.

Sincerely,

Dore kdPosta,/Director L

Div{sion ofEnforcement and Compliance Assistance
Enclosures

cc: Karen Maples, Regional Hearing Clerk (without enclosures)
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In The Matter of: COMPLAINT, COMPLIANCE ORDER
AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNIEY ) :
FOR HEARING o &
City of Buffalo
Respondent, Docket No. RCRA-02-2013-7108
Proceeding Under Section 3008 of the
Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended.
COMPLAINT

This is a civil administrative proceeding instituted pursuant to Section 3008 of the Solid Waste
Disposal Act, as amended by various laws including the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984 (“HSWA”), 42 U.S.C. § 6901 et
seq. (referred to collectively as the “Act” or “RCRA”).

This COMPLAINT, COMPLIANCE ORDER AND NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR
HEARING (“Complaint”) serves notice of EPA’s preliminary determination that the City of

Buffalo, has violated certain requirements of the authorized New York State hazardous waste
program and the federal hazardous waste program.

Section 3006(b) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(b), provides that EPA’s Administrator may, if
certain criteria are met, authorize a state to operate a hazardous waste program (within the
meaning of Section 3006 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6926) in licu of the regulations comprising the
federal hazardous waste program (the Federal Program). The State of New York received final
authorization to administer its base hazardous waste program on May 29, 1986. Since 1986,
New York State has been authorized for many other hazardous waste requirements promulgated
by EPA pursuant to RCRA, See 67 Fed. Reg. 49864 (August 1, 2002), 70 Fed. Reg. 1825
(January 11, 2005) and 74 Fed. Reg. 31380 (July 1, 2009) and 78 Fed. Reg. 15299 (March 11,
2013). New York is authorized for most hazardous waste regulations issued by EPA as of

January 22, 2002 and the Uniform Hazardous Waste Manifest Amendments issued by EPA on
March 4, 2005 and June 16, 2005.

Section 3008(a)(1) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §6928(a)(1), provides, in part, that “whenever on the
basis of any information the Administrator [of EPA] determines that any person has violated or is
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in violation of any requirement of this subchapter [Subtitle C of RCRA], the Administrator may
issue an order assessing a civil penalty for any past or current violation.” Section 3008(a)(2) of
RCRA, 42 U.S.C. 6928(a)(2) provides, in part, that “ [i]n the case of a violation of any
requirement of [Subtitle C of RCRA|] where such violation occurs in a State which is authorized
to carry out a hazardous waste program under [Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. 6926], the
Administrator [of EPA] shall give notice to the State in which such violation has occurred prior
to issuing an order.”

Section 3008(a) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), authorizes EPA to enforce the regulations
constituting the authorized State program and EPA retains primary responsibility for the

enforcement of certain requirements promulgated pursuant to HSWA for which the State has not
yet been authorized.

Section 3008(c) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(c), authorizes EPA to seek a civil penalty for a
violation of a schedule for corrective action in a compliance order.

The Complainant in this proceeding, the Director of the Division of Enforcement and
Compliance Assistance, EPA, Region 2, who has been duly delegated the authority to institute
this action, hereby alleges:

Jurisdiction

1. This Tribunal has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to Section
3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 22.1(a)(4).

2. In accordance with Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)}(2), EPA has given the
State of New York prior notice of this action.

Respondent’s background

3. Respondent is the City of Buffalo (hereinafter “City of Buffalo™, “Buffalo” and/or
“Respondent™). Buffalo’s main administrative offices are located at 65 Niagara Square
(“City Hall), Buffalo, New York 14202.

4. Respondent is a city that occupies about 52.5 square miles in Erie County in the State of New
York.

5. Respondent owns and/or operates approximately 200 buildings (including, but not limited to,
those utilized by General Services Buildings, Department of Public Works, Parks, and
Streets, Buffalo Police Precincts and Fire Departments, public libraries, public parks, hockey
area, skating rinks, community centers, museums, theaters, a zoo, and a marina) located at
various sites throughout the City; these buildings do not include those operated and utilized
by the Buffalo Board of Education.



6.

Respondent is a “person” as defined at Section 1004(15) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6903(15),
and Title 6 of the New York Codes, Rules, and Regulations (“6 NYCRR?”) § 370.2(b).

Hazardous Waste Generation

10.

11
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13.

In the course of normal operations, the City of Buffalo generates “solid waste,” as that term is
defined at 6 NYCRR § 371.1(c) through its various departmental entities.

In the course of normal operations, the City of Buffalo generates “hazardous waste,” as that
term is defined at 6 NYCRR § 371.1(d) through its various departmental entities.

Solid and hazardous wastes generated by the City of Buffalo include, but are not limited to
waste paints, spent solvents, corrosive liquids, used oil, used automotive fluids, and
pharmaceutical wastes.

Some of the wastes described above exhibit the characteristic of ignitability.

The City of Buffalo generates significant amounts of spent lamps and Cathode Ray Tubes
(CRTs), a solid and potentially hazardous waste stream, at all or most of its municipal
buildings, and from street lighting.

Some of the spent lamps and CRTs generated at the approximately 200 buildings owned
and/or operated by Buffalo and some of the spent lamps generated from street lighting,
exhibit the characteristic of toxicity under the Toxic Characteristic Leaching Procedure
(TCLP) for metals, in particular mercury.

Spent lamps may be handled under the less stringent standards provided under the Universal
Waste Rules, codified in federal regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 273 and in New York State
regulations at 6 NYCRR Part 374-3.

Hazardous Waste Notification

14.

I3,

Pursuant to Section 3010 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6930, all persons conducting activities that
generate hazardous waste are required to notify EPA of their hazardous waste activities.

At the present time, the City of Buffalo has notified EPA that it generates hazardous waste at
approximately twenty- seven sites and Buffalo was assigned hazardous waste identification
numbers for those sites.

Previous EPA Complaint and Consent Order -

16.

On June 30, 2010, the City of Buffalo was issued a “Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for
Hearing” (“Complaint”) bearing docket number Docket No. RCRA-02-2010-7107. The
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18.

19.

20.

25

Complaint alleged violations of the requirements of RCRA and regulations concerning the
management of hazardous waste.

The Complaint was issued in response to information obtained during an inspection and other
investigatory activities at the offices of the City of Buffalo’s Department of Public Works,
Parks, and Streets (“DPW”) and other offices at Buffalo’s City Hall by a duly authorized
representative of the EPA on September 24, 2009, pursuant to Section 3007 of RCRA, 42
U.S.C. § 6927,

The Complaint cited Respondent’s failures to make, or to have a third-party make on its
behalf, hazardous waste determinations for its spent fluorescent, high pressure sodium vapor,

mercury vapor lamps, and metal halide lamps which failures constitute violations of 6
NYCRR § 372.2(2)(2).

The Complaint also cited the Respondent for not maintaining and operating its facilities in
such a manner as to minimize the possibility of any unplanned sudden or non-sudden releases
of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents to the air, soil, or surface water which
could threaten human health or the environment in accordance with 6 NYCRR § 373-2.3(b)
and/or 6 NYCRR § 373-3.3(b).

On April 11, 2011, pursuant to Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928, and 40 C.F.R. §
22.18 of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of
Civil Penalties and the Revocation or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, a Consent
Agreement and Final Order (“Consent Order”) was agreed to between the EPA and the City
of Buffalo.

In the Consent Agreement, the City of Buffalo certified that it was in compliance with all of
the terms of the Compliance Order that was issued to Respondent as part of the Complaint
and agreed that it would hereinafter comply with all applicable federal and state regulatory
requirements for the management of hazardous waste by generators and universal waste
handlers at all of Buffalo’s facilities.

EPA Investigatory Activities

22,

23,

On September 13 and September 14, 2011, a duly authorized representative of EPA
conducted RCRA Compliance Evaluation Inspections (“Inspections”) of six municipal sites
owned and operated by the City of Buffalo pursuant to Section 3007 of RCRA, 42 U.8.C. §
6927,

The Inspections were conducted to determine whether or not the City of Buffalo was
complying with the Consent Order and with RCRA regulations at its multiple facilities.

24. At the time of the Inspections, several hundred containers, which contained waste paints,

paint thinners, solvents, and related waste unidentifiable due to obliterated labels, were
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25,

26.

21

28.

29.

30.

31.

observed in the former paint shop of the Mechanical Services building located at 1326
Seneca Street.

At the time of the Inspections, many of these containers referred to in paragraph 24, above,
appeared to have been stored for extensive periods of time, had unreadable or no labels to
identify their contents, were extremely corroded and some had already leaked their contents,
and most appeared to have been stored in lieu of disposal.

At the time of the Inspections, all of the containers referred to in paragraph 24, above, were
declared to be waste by the Mechanical Services department manager, Mr. Dennis Gesel,
who stated that the painting operations room “is no longer used”.

At the time of the Inspections, several hundred spent fluorescent lamps were observed being
stored in the basement of City Hall, in the Mechanical Services building, and at the Buffalo
Museum of Science.

At the time of the Inspections, none of the several hundred spent fluorescent lamps referred
to in paragraph 27, above, were labeled as hazardous or universal waste, and either were not
being stored in containers or were being stored in open containers.

At the time of the Inspections, about 12 containers of spent lamps were piled in a haphazard
manner in the Mechanical Services building.

At the time of the Inspections, other large spent mercury lamps, similar to those used to light
stadiums and gymnasiums, were found randomly placed on the floor in hallways and other
locations in the Mechanical Services building without being labeled or containerized or
otherwise protected from breakage which would allow releases of mercury.

At the time of the Inspections, dozens of discarded CRTs were haphazardly stored in multiple
locations owned by the City of Buffalo; CRTs can contain enough lead to require managing
them as hazardous waste; however, none of the discarded CRTs observed during the
inspections were labeled as hazardous or universal waste.

Information Request Letter (IRL), Notices of Violation, and Respondent’s Responses

32,

33,

On or about March 21, 2012, EPA issued to the City of Buffalo a Notice of Violation and
RCRA Section 3007 Information Request Letter (“NOV-IRL”).

The NOV portion of the NOV-IRL, which was issued pursuant to Section 3008 of the Act, 42
U.S.C. § 6928, informed the Respondent that EPA had identified at least thirteen (13) RCRA
violations at multiple sites and required Respondent to provide a description and
documentation of the actions it had taken to correct the violations within thirty (30) calendar
days from receipt of the NOV-IRL.



34.

3.3

36.

The IRL portion of the NOV-IRL was issued pursuant to Section 3007 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C.

§ 6927, and sought, in part, information and documentation relating to Respondent’s
management of the significant number of containers of waste and waste-like material being
accumulated or stored, many of which had been observed to be corroded, leaking, or
otherwise in poor condition, and many of which were unlabeled; this information was needed
to assist EPA in fully evaluating Buffalo’s compliance with RCRA regulations and with the
Consent Order.

The IRL portion of the NOV-IRL also requested information concerning the City’s
management and disposal of discarded spent lamps and CRTs generated by its significant
municipal administrative operations.

In a letter dated April 26, 2012, Respondent submitted its Response to the NOV-IRL
(hereinafter “Response”).

COUNT 1 — Failure to Make Timely Hazardous Waste Determinations

37

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Complainant repeats and re-alleges each allegation contained in contained in paragraphs “1”
through *“36”, inclusive, with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

Pursuant to 6 NYCRR § 372.2(a)(2), a person who generates a solid waste must determine, or
have a third party determine, whether that solid waste is a hazardous waste, using the
procedures specified in that provision.

In accordance with 6 NYCRR § 371.1(c), subject to certain inapplicable exclusions, a solid
waste is defined as any discarded, abandoned, recycled, or inherently waste-like material. In
accordance with the same provision, materials are solid wastes if they are abandoned by
being disposed of, burned or incinerated.

Pursuant to 6 NYCRR § 371.1(c)(3) materials are solid wastes if they are abandoned by
being:
a. disposed of;
b. burned or incinerated; or
¢. accumulated, stored, or treated before or in lieu of being abandoned by being
disposed of, burned or incinerated.

At the time of the Inspections, the City of Buffalo had generated waste at some of its
approximately 200 buildings, including but not limited to waste paints and solvents which
were “discarded material” and a “solid waste” as defined in 6 NYCRR § 371.1(¢).

In its March 21,2012 NOV-IRL, EPA cited the large number of containers of waste paints
and solvents observed by the inspector at the time of the Inspections in the Mechanical
Services Building as a violation of the requirement to make a hazardous waste determination.



43.

44,

45,

46.

In its Response dated April 26, 2012, to the March 21 NOV-IRL, with reference to the waste
paints and solvents observed at the time of the Inspections in the Mechanical Services
Building, the City of Buffalo stated that “[pJaint that was no longer usable, identified as
waste paint, was transported for disposal” and that “[pJaint that was no longer usable was
transported to the Cycle Chem, Inc., Lesisberry, PA facility on March 23, 2012, as evidenced
on the hazardous waste manifest (Tracking 001055736 JJK).”

In its Response, Respondent provided a copy of hazardous waste manifest referred to in
paragraph 43 above which showed that Respondent had generated 1,400, pounds of waste
paint and that this waste paint was classified by Respondent as ignitable (D001) hazardous
waste.

As of the date of the Inspections, Respondent had not itself determined, nor had a third-party
determine, whether its wastes, including those noted in paragraphs “43” and “44”, above,
constituted hazardous waste. :

Respondent’s failures to timely have made, or have a third-party make on its behalf,
hazardous waste determinations for the aforementioned wastes at its Mechanical Services
Building, constitute multiple violations of 6 NYCRR § 372.2(a)(2).

COUNT 2 - Failure to Keep Containers in Good Condition and to Transfer Hazardous

Waste

- 47.

48.

49,

54,

3.

Complainant repeats and re-alleges each allegation contained in contained in paragraphs “1”
through “46”, inclusive, with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

Pursuant to 6 NYCRR § 373-2.9(b) and 6 NYCRR § 373-3.9(b) generators are required to
keep containers in good condition and to transfer hazardous waste from a leaking container to
a container that is in good condition.

At the time of the Inspections, Respondent stored waste paints and waste solvents in
containers that were corroded or had already breached and released their contents in the
Mechanical Services building.

As set forth in paragraph 43 above, on a date more than six months after the Inspections,
Respondent shipped these wastes off-site for disposal using a hazardous waste manifest that
declared the wastes to be hazardous.

In its Response, the City of Buffalo, in reference to the waste paints and waste solvents
observed in the Mechanical Services Building, stated “All reported or identified leaking
containers have been removed or replaced immediately and contents transferred to a
container in good condition, properly labeled and inventoried.”



52,

Respondent’s failures to keep containers of hazardous waste in good condition and to transfer
hazardous waste from a leaking container to a container that was in good condition at its
Facility, constitute multiple violations of 6 NYCRR § 373-2.9(b) or 6 NYCRR § 373-3.9(b).

COUNT 3 - Failure to Minimize Risks of Fire, Explosion and Releases

A

54.

89,

56,

57.

58.

59.

Complainant repeats and re-alleges each allegation contained in contained in paragraphs “1”
through “52”, inclusive, with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

Pursuant to 6 NYCRR § 373-2.3(b), and 6 NYCRR § 373-3.3(b), a facility must be
maintained and operated to minimize the possibility of a fire, explosion, or any unplanned
sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents to air, soil
or surface water which could threaten human health or the environment.

At the time of the Inspections, Respondent was storing hazardous wastes in several hundred
containers, many of which had corroded and/or had leaked their contents in the Mechanical
Services building. These materials were later shipped off-site and labeled as hazardous waste
due to their ignitability.

At the time of the Inspections, Respondent was storing several hundred spent fluorescent
lamps and CRTs in the basement of City Hall in a haphazard fashion without proper
containment to prevent breakage and at least one lamp had broken and spilled its contents.

Fluorescent light bulbs often contain mercury which can be released to the surrounding air
when bulbs break.

In its Response, the City of Buffalo stated “All violations with regard to the Universal Waste
at the Mechanical Services building and in the basement of City Hall have been corrected.”

Respondent’s aforementioned failures to maintain and operate its Facilities to minimize the
possibility of a fire, explosion, or any unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous
waste or hazardous waste constituents into the air, soil or surface water which could threaten
human health or the environment, constitute multiple violations of 6 NYCRR § 373-2.3(b) or
6 NYCRR § 373-3.3(b).

COUNT 4 - Failure to Comply with an EPA Consent Order

60.

61.

Complainant repeats and re-alleges each allegation contained in contained in paragraphs “1”
through “58”, inclusive, with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

On April 11, 2011, pursuant to Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928, and 40 C.F.R.
§ 22.18 of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of
Civil Penalties and the Revocation or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, a Consent



Agreement was entered into between the EPA and the City of Buffalo and a Final Order
incorporating the Consent Agreement was issued requiring compliance with its provisions.

62. The Consent Order required that, commencing on the effective date of the Order, the City of
Buffalo would henceforth determine whether or not any and all solid wastes generated as part
of its municipal activities are or are not hazardous waste.

63. As set forth in Count 1 above, at the time of the Inspections, the City of Buffalo had
generated numerous wastes for which it had not timely made hazardous waste
determinations.

64. The Consent Order required that, commencing on the effective of the Order, the City of
Buffalo comply with all applicable federal and state regulatory requirements for the
management of hazardous waste by generators and universal waste handlers.

65. As set forth in Counts 2 and 3 above, at the time of the Inspections, the City of Buffalo has
failed to timely comply with important federal and state regulatory requirements for the
management of hazardous waste by generators and universal waste handlers.

66. Respondent’s failure to comply with the Consent Order constitutes a failure to take corrective

action within the time specified in a compliance order issued under Section 3008 of RCRA.

II. PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTY

The proposed civil penalty has been determined in accordance with Sections 3008(a)(3)
and 3008(c) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(3) and § 6928(c). For purposes of determining the
amount of any penalty assessed, Section 3008(a)(3) requires EPA to "take into account the
seriousness of the violation and any good faith efforts to comply with applicable requirements.”
To develop the proposed penalty in this complaint, the Complainant has taken into account the
particular facts and circumstances of this case and used EPA's 2003 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy,
a copy of which is available upon request or can be found on the Internet at the following
address: http: //www. epa.gov/compliance/resources/policies/civil/rcra/rcpp2003-ful.pdf . This
policy provides a rational, consistent and equitable calculation methodology for applying the
statutory penalty factors to particular cases.

The Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, as amended by the Debt
Collection Improvement Act of 1996, required EPA to adjust its penalties for inflation on a
periodic basis. Consistent with this, the penalty amounts in the 2003 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy
have been amended to reflect inflation adjustments. These adjustments were made pursuant to
the December 29, 2008 document entitled Amendments to EPA’s Civil Penalty Policies to
Implement the 2008 Civil Penalty Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule (effective January
12, 2009); and the November 16, 2009 document entitled Adjusted Penalty Policy Matrices
based on the 2008 Civil Monetary Inflation Rule (with a further revision not relevant to this
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action on April 6, 2010). The maximum civil penalty under Sections 3008(a)(3) and 3008(c) of
RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(3) and § 6928(c), for violations after January 12, 2009 is $37,500
per day of violation. 40 C.F.R. Part 19.

The Complainant proposes, subject to receipt and evaluation of further relevant
information from the Respondent, that the Respondent be assessed the following civil penalty for
the violations alleged in this Complaint. A penalty calculation worksheet and narrative
explanation to support the penalty figure for each violation cited in this Complaint are included
in Attachment [, below. Matrices employed in the determination of the penalties are included as
Attachment II.

In view of the above-cited violations, and pursuant to the authority of Sections 3008(a)(3)
and 3008(c) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(3) and § 6928(c), the Complainant herewith
proposes the assessment of a civil penalty in the total amount of one hundred thirty one thousand,
two hundred and fifty dollars ($112,500) as follows:

Count 1: $ 37,500
Counts 2 and 3: $ 37,500
Count 4: $ 37,500

Total Proposed Penalty: $ 112,500

IIl. COMPLIANCE ORDER

_ Based upon the foregoing, and pursuant to the authority of Section 3008 of the Act,
Complainant issues Respondent the following Compliance Order. The City of Buffalo shall:

1. Commencing on the effective date of this Compliance Order, to the extent it has not done
so, Respondent shall make the required determinations whether any and/or all of the solid wastes
generated and stored at its Facilities are hazardous wastes.

2. Commencing on the effective date of this Compliance Order, Respondent shall maintain
and operate its Facilities so as to minimize the possibility of a fire, explosion, or any unplanned
sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents to the air, soil
or surface water which could threaten human health or the environment.

3 Commencing on the effective date of this Compliance Order, Respondent shall, to the
extent it has not done so, store hazardous waste only in containers that are in good condition.

4. Within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of this Compliance Order,

Respondent shall comply with all other applicable federal and state regulatory requirements for
hazardous waste generators, including those provisions for the on-site storage of hazardous waste
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by the generator of such waste, at its Facilities and shall comply with universal waste rules
applicable to the handling of its spent fluorescent bulbs.

3. All responses, documentation, and evidence submitted in response to this Compliance
Order should be sent to:

Ronald Voelkel

Environmental Scientist

RCRA Compliance Branch

Division of Enforcement and Compliance Assistance
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 2
290 Broadway, 21* Floor

New York, New York 10007-1866

This Compliance Order shall take effect thirty (30) days after service of this Order, unless
by that date Respondent has requested a hearing pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.15. See 42 U.8.C. §
6928(b) and 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.37(b) and 22.7(c).

Compliance with the provisions of this Compliance Order does not waive, extinguish or
otherwise affect Respondent’s obligation to comply with all other applicable RCRA statutory or
regulatory (federal and/or state) provisions, nor does such compliance release Respondent from
liability for any violations at its Facilities. In addition, nothing herein waives, prejudices or
otherwise affects EPA’s right to enforce any applicable provision of law, and to seek and obtain
any appropriate penalty or remedy under any such law, regarding Respondent’s generation,
handling and/or management of hazardous waste at its Facilities. '

IV. NOTICE OF LIABILITY FOR ADDITIONAL CIVIL PENALTIES

Pursuant to the terms of Section 3008(c) of RCRA and the Debt Collection Improvement
Act of 1996, a violator failing to take corrective action within the time specified in a compliance
order regarding hazardous waste violations is liable for a civil penalty of up to $37,500 for each
day of continued noncompliance (73 Fed. Reg. 75340, December 11, 2008).

V. PROCEDURES GOVERNING THIS ADMINISTRATIVE LITIGATION

The rules of procedure governing this civil administrative litigation have been set forth in
64 Fed. Reg. 40138 (July 23, 1999), entitled, “CONSOLIDATED RULES OF PRACTICE
GOVERNING THE ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENTS OF CIVIL PENALTIES,
ISSUANCE OF COMPLIANCE OR CORRECTIVE ACTION COMPLIANCE ORDERS, AND
THE REVOCATION, TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF PERMITS” and which are
codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22. A copy of these rules accompanies this “Complaint, Compliance
Order and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing.”
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